
 

 
State of New Mexico 

General Services Department 
Purchasing Division 

(505) 827-0472 

 
Amendment No. ONE 
 
Date: January 24, 2025   
 
To: All Potential Bidders  
 
From:  
 
 /Purchasing_Agent/         Date: 

Dorothy Mendonca 
New Mexico State Purchasing Agent  
 
Re: Invitation to Bid Number: 50-52100-24-06149 
 
Department: Energy, Minerals, and Natural Resources Department  
 
Title: Madrid Water Tank Project  
 
Opening date: January 31, 2025  
 
This Amendment is issued to reflect the following change to the Bid opening date: 
 
Extend Bid opening date from: January 31, 2025 
                 to: February 6, 2025 
 
This Amendment is also issued to reflect the following:   
1.) Questions and Answers, including map (8 pages pages) 
2.) Updated Construction Plan Set with revisions on Sheets 4, 9, and 10 (16 pages) 
3.) Estimated Quantities Sheet (1 page)  
4.) Pre-Bid Meeting Sign-in Sheet (5 pages) 
5.) New Mexico Wage Rate sheet is updated to reflect 2025 rates (5 pages) 
6.) Federal Davis Bacon Wage Rate sheet has been updated to reflect 2025 Highway rates (7 pages) 
7.) The virtual component of the pre-bid meeting described on pg. 4 and pg. 12 of the ITB has been 
removed; there is no virtual component to the pre-bid meeting. 
 
If you have already submitted an electronic bid, you will need to acknowledge this amendment 
by resubmitting your bid. Your bid has changed from 'submitted' to 'in progress' and will not 
be accepted if you do not acknowledge this amendment. Click the link to get started: 
https://bids.sciquest.com/apps/Router/PublicEvent?CustomerOrg=StateOfNewMexico  
 
All other items, terms and conditions shall remain the same. 

Procurement Specialist: James Ortega Phone: (505) 795-2516 Email: james.ortega@gsd.nm.gov
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Madrid Water Tank Project 
ITB 50-52100-24-06149  

 
Question and Answer 

1) Will Domestic Material be required for this project? Yes, as stated on Pg. 4 of the ITB, this 
project requires contractors to comply with the “Buy America Act” requirements. Additional 
information can be found in the Buy America Domestic Procurement Preference Notice in 
Appendix B. 
 

2) What Entity or Agency is Funding this project? This project is federally funded by the 
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement (OSMRE), and through additional 
funding in the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). 
 

3) Could you provide a ductile iron pipe spec for arroyo crossing?  To be installed per 
AWWA C150. 
 

4) Could you provide a spec for 2” inlet line from existing well? Use schedule 40 PVC glue 
fit or Municiplex. 
 

5) Could you provide a spec for outlet drainpipe and a profile for the connection to the 
tank?   Use 8” C-900 PVC. Connection to be determined by selected tank manufacturer. 
 

6) Are the tank specifications from American Structures Inc equivalent to the tank 
specifications stated in the ITB? (Requesting approved as equal) . This tank does appear 
to be an equivalent type of tank for this project. 
 

7) Will a welded steel tank be accepted in lieu of a bolted tank?   Welded tanks can be 
considered as an equivalent option. 
 

8) Confirm dimensions of tank.  Drawings show 31’ diameter by 24’ to overflow which 
should be a minimum total height of 25’.  Specs say 30’ diameter by 25’ height. Tank 
needs to be sized for 125,000 gallons.  The size of the tank may vary slightly depending on 
the manufacturer. 
 

9) Ladder cages are no longer considered suitable fall protection by OSHA.  Is it 
acceptable to delete ladder cage and replace with OSHA approved fall protection 
safety rail system?  Yes, everything must meet OSHA standards. 
 

10) Is this a private NFPA-22 water tank for fire suppression? Yes. 
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11) Do you require insulation for this tank?  Insulation or a heater must be provided with the 
tank for freeze protection.  
 

12) There's not a lot of details or specifications on the tank, tank foundation, and subcut 
requirements of the tank. Is this anticipated to be designed by the 
Contractor/Supplier?  Yes, the tank manufacturer must provide the design for the tank and 
the tank foundation.  These designs must be stamped by a registered New Mexico 
professional engineer. Reference Terracon GeoReport dated April 13, 2021 and Western 
Technologies Georeport dated April 25, 2024 (Boring ID 3) for additional earthwork 
preparations. 
 

13) Would a Welded Steel Tank be an acceptable Option? (let us know if you need 
additional information on this one).  Welded tanks can be considered as an equivalent 
option. 
 

14) I have two questions regarding this project:  the details of the mandatory pre-bid 
mention a virtual meeting, but no virtual meeting information is provided.  Is the 
mandatory pre-bid an in person meeting?  The pre-bid meeting is mandatory and in 
person.  There is no virtual component.  The State Purchasing Division revised the Invitation 
to Bid document to remove the virtual meeting reference. 
 
 

15) Is there a geotechnical report available for the site and jack/bore locations?  The 
Geotechnical Report has been posted on the AML Program website here: 
https://www.emnrd.nm.gov/mmd/madrid-water-tank-project/. 
 

16) Where is the link to the electronic submission? The electronic submission link is located 
on Pg. 3 under “Submitted Bids”. Prior to an electronic bid submission, you’ll need to create 
a supplier account. Once you click on the link on Pg. 3, you can search for to the Water Tank 
Procurement (#50-52100-24-06149), and then create an account to submit a bid. Or at the 
top of the webpage, you can register from the 
https://solutions.sciquest.com/apps/Router/SupplierLogin?CustOrg=StateOfNewMexico 
link. The link shown on Page 1 of the ITB is incorrect. 
 

17) Could you include a Rock Excavation Bid Item in case the Contractor encounters rock 
during the trenching of the waterline?  No rock excavation is anticipated currently.  
However, as rock may be encountered, a line item was added to the quantity list. 
 

18) There are several references to the Geotech report for this contract. Please make this 
report available to the bidders. The link to the Geotechnical Report is posted on the AML 
Program and can be found here: https://www.emnrd.nm.gov/mmd/madrid-water-tank-
project/. 
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19) The plans make the Contractor responsible for obtaining a NM DOT utility permit, is 
there a cost involved for this permit? Please provide us with a point of contact in the 
NM DOT that we may contact for this permit.  The NMDOT Utility Permit is already 
“approved” by NMDOT.  The only permit the contractor will be responsible for from NMDOT 
is a Barricading Permit.  Below is the NMDOT person who approved the plans. 
Marcos G. Herrera 
Utility Permit Agent 
NMDOT District 5 
Traffic Section  
P.O. Box 4127 
Santa Fe, NM 87502 
Cell: 505-690-1524 
Marcos.herrera@dot.nm.gov   
 
NMDOT Barricade permit costs are calculated by per SF of barricade area and duration of 
permit. Cost shall be determined upon acceptance of an Approved Traffic Control plan. 
 

20) On Sheet 7 of the plans, the Boring Detail shows bedding above the casing pipe. Since 
this casing will be installed without digging, please explain the intent of this detail.  The 
hatch showing bedding above the casing pipe on Sheet 7 was incorrect and was removed 
from the detail. 
 

21) There are several notes in the plans that require "PH corrective soils", please clarify the 
requirements for this soil.  Use Type I or Type 2 base course material per NMDOT Section 
303 of the Highway and Bridge Construction specifications. 
 

22) Note 1 on sheet 13 of the plans, requires that the sloped embankment be built with 3" 
to 4" fractured rock and Mirafi fabric. Please clarify the vertical distance between the 
layers of the Mirafi fabric.  This note is a reference to slope stabilization Use Mirafi 180N or 
equivalent and anchor fabric at the top and bottom of the slope by burying a 2’ fabric 
overlap in a minimum 12” depth trench. Install anchor pins (3/16” diameter x 18” with 
washer cap) or (11 gauge 6” x6” staples) 12” o.c. in fabric overlap and bury overlap in trench.  
Install staples or pins 3’ o.c.e.w in field of fabric and every 6” along laps and edges. Provide 
6” fabric overlap on all seams. Install 8” of 3-4” fractured rock directly on fabric. 
 

23) On sheet 10, please clarify the number of impact attenuators (Sled TL-2), needed to 
protect the ends of the CWB? There are attenuators shown in the middle of the CWB 
runs, are there six attenuators required as shown?  There were extra keyed notes on the 
plans that were incorrect and removed.  One impact attenuator at each end of the CWB is 
required. 
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24) On sheet 9 there are three exposed pipes that need to be protected against freezing, 

please provide details for this work.  This may or may not be needed depending on the 
tank used for the project.  Exposed pipes be blanketed and/or be wrapped in heat tape until 
pipe is buried to local  frost level. Assume 10’ of freeze protection for each pipe run.  This 
will ultimately be coordinated with the local utility. 
 

25) Does the tank manufacturer need to provide insulation and/or immersion heaters to 
protect the tank from freezing?  Yes.  Consult tank manufacturer for freeze protection 
requirements and system availability. 
 

26) Is the material for the 4" drain for the tank steel or PVC?  C-900 PVC. 
 

27) Other than the ¾" line from the tank to the well house, will the contractor have any 
other responsibilities with the SCADA system? Coordination with Madrid Water Board is 
required. 
 

28) Could you add Bid Items for the Construction Staking and an item for the Quality 
Control Testing of the concrete and soils?  A quantity list is now provided and includes 
these items.  Material testing shall be performed per NMDOT Section 906-Minimum Testing 
Requirements. 
 

29) There are two fire hydrants shown in the waterline plan and profile at stations 17+32 & 
21 +00. On the waterline profile at station 14+22.8, a fire hydrant tee is shown but there 
is no fire hydrant shown on the plan view. Is a fire hydrant required at station 14+22.8?  
No.  The 14+22.8 reference was removed from Sheet 4. 
 

30) Is this work part of AML’s construction on-call? No this will be a low-bid procurement 
project.  
 

31) Is employee health insurance required? This will depend on the size of your company. See 
Page 4 of the ITB explaining NM Employees Health Coverage.  

a. If Contractor has, or grows to, six (6) or more employees who work, or who are 
expected to work, an average of at least 20 hours per week over a six (6) month 
period during the term of this Agreement, Contractor certifies, by signing this 
agreement, to have in place, and agree to maintain for the term of the Agreement, 
health insurance for those employees and offer that health insurance to those 
employees if the expected annual value in the aggregate of any and all contracts 
between Contractor and the State exceed $250,000 dollars.  

b. Contractor agrees to maintain a record of the number of employees who have (a) 
accepted health insurance; (b) declined health insurance due to other health 
insurance coverage already in place; or (c) declined health insurance for other 

Docusign Envelope ID: C6EF7A46-0FA6-43F1-82AF-81416D2C5BD2



reasons. These records are subject to review and audit by a representative of the 
state.  

c. Contractor agrees to advise all employees of the availability of State publicly 
financed health care coverage programs by providing each employee with, as a 
minimum, the following web site link to additional information: 
https://bewellnm.com.  

 
32) Will there be a temporary pumping requirement for fire response during construction? 

There shouldn’t be a need for temporary pumping.  The only time the existing fire system will 
be interrupted is when the new line is connected to the existing line.  That should only be for 
a short period of time.  
 

33) Can AML identify available areas for equipment staging/soil stockpiling? Yes, the 
following areas can be utilized for staging equipment/soil stockpiling. Please see the 
attached map. 
 

a. Small area located above the water tank for some equipment staging: 
35.400724, -106.157931 

b. Large soil/equipment staging located east of the Madrid Ball Park: 35.411024,    
-106.1485679 

 
34) Traffic Control: does the winning contractor need an NMDOT permit? Is a wall barrier 

required? Is the traffic control plan in the engineering plan set approved by NMDOT?  
Yes, the winning contractor must obtain an NMDOT Barricading Permit.  The traffic control 
plans included in the plan set are approved by NMDOT, however, the barricading company 
may submit a different plan to meet the contractors’ needs for construction. 
 

35) Where is the nearest local water source for construction? The nearest local water source 
is the “Ojo de Agua” Convenience Center located next to the SFC Public Safety Complex. 
 

36) How much working area is available around the tank foundation area? Approximately 5ft 
around the tank foundation.  
 

37) Can material quantities be specified?  A quantity list is now included. See attached. 
 

38) I have submitted questions to the Q&A board on the SPO website. Has AML received 
my questions? SPD has implemented a new Q&A system online. AML has talked to SPD 
and have received these questions.  
 

39) The contract term is 240 days, but what is the desired project start/end date? AML 
would like project construction to begin immediately after the contract with the winning 
bidder is signed. AML would like to complete the project before June 1, 2025. 
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40) Will there be excessive delays for archaeology work that the contractor needs to plan 

for? No, the AML Program is not expecting any delays due to archaeology. This work will be 
completed before the tank project begins.  
 

41) How many fire hydrants will be installed on the project?  Two, one at station 17+31.22 
and one at station 20+89.30. 
 

42) (Note from Tierra West: Delete note on station 14+20 on Sheet 4) This note was deleted. 
 

43) Is production testing required for trenching?  A proctor and backfill density is required 
(see County testing requirements). Hydrostatic testing of the waterline is required. 
 

44) Who is responsible for the final inspection and acceptance of the tank foundation? 
Tierra West will provide periodic observations and certification that the project is being built 
according to the plans and specifications. The New Mexico AML Program is working with 
local government officials to determine the final authority to inspect and accept the 
construction. 
 

45) Does the county have a nearby borrow pit source? No specific county borrow pits have 
been identified. 
 

46) What are the NM licensing requirements or qualifications needed for this project? The 
contractor must possess a valid New Mexico Contractor License appropriate for the type of 
work in this project. The New Mexico Construction Industries Division is the ultimate 
arbitrator of this issue and inquiries should be directed directly to them. 
 

47) Who is responsible for surveying?  The contractor is responsible for obtaining a licensed 
surveyor when it is needed during construction. Please add this expense to one of your 
lump sum bid items. 
 

48) Who will pay for water and fill material?  The contractor shall pay all expenses to 
purchase and transport any water and fill material required in the project.  Please add these 
expenses to one of your lump sum bid items. 
 

49) Will any fence repairs be needed? Yes, the fence to the west of the tank foundation will 
need to be rebuilt after the foundation is complete. Please include the cost to do so in your 
bid. 
 

50) What type of cathodic protection (jumper or coating)? Other than the PH corrective soils 
identified in the plans, any other cathodic protection is to be at the discretion of the 
operator.  
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51) Does the cathodic protection need to be installed by a certified contractor? A certified 
cathodic contractor is not required for the installation. Contractor should be knowledgeable 
with cathodic installation. 
 

52) What is the process to supply the bid bond? Page three has a note that a 5% bid bond is 
required. Please include the bid bond verification and Bid Bond form on page 18 with your 
electronically-submitted bid.  The requirement to submit an original Bid bond physically 
prior to bid opening has been waived for this ITB. 

 
53) Please provide the dimensions & Reinforcement requirements for ALL concrete 

foundations and site work; in particular: the water tank ring foundation and the 4’ X 5’ 
concrete pad at the top of the tank footing.  Reinforcing for the tank foundation is to be 
provided by the tank designer.  All other concrete can be reinforced with 10x10 WWM. 
 

54) Project Manual, page 13, Attachment Checklist, Item G. Subcontractor & Department 
of Workforce Solutions, Industrial & Labor Division Listing Requirements: Is there a 
separate form from the List of Subcontractors for the listing requirements?  Please use 
the form (or at least the format) provided on pages 25 and 26 of the project manual to list 
the subcontractors in your bid packet. 

 
55) Are there any paint specifications? The Madrid Water Board requests a beige color 

matching the nearby existing tank. 
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Madrid Water Tank Project 
Proposed staging areas for the Madrid Water Tank Project. 
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OLACED WITH LANDSCAPE STAPLE AT 5' ON CENTER EACH WAY.
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TIERRA WEST, LLC

1. 3" TO 4" FRACTURED ROCK OVER MIRAFI FABRIC. ON SLOPES 3:1
OR STEEPER.

2. EXISTING ACCESS ROADWAY TO BE STABILIZED WITH 4" GRAVEL
SURFACE.

3. HYDROLOGY CALCULATIONS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED WITH SITE
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REPORT.

W W
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TIERRA WEST, LLC

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

SWPPP PURPOSE:

LIST OF OPERATORS:

STORMWATER TEAM MEMBERS:

GROUND COVER (PRE-CONSTRUCTION):

NATURE AND EXTENT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES:
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TIERRA WEST, LLC

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

GENERAL EROSION NOTES:

GENERAL NOTES:

“

“ ”
“ ”
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TIERRA WEST, LLC

EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

SWPPP INFORMATION
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Madrid Waterline and Tank Quantity Sheet.xls

Date:

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY U. PRICE CAL. COST

Earthwork for Tank Foundation CY 700.00        

PH Corrective Soil (assume 4" layer under tank) SY 84.00          

Slope Stabiliztion (3"-4" fractrued rock, 8" thick) CY 58.00          

Water Storage Tank Foundation LS 1.00            

Water Storage Tank (125,000 gallons w/ insulation or heater) LS 1.00            

6" WL Pipe, w/o Fit, with trenching LF 20.00          

8" WL Pipe, w/o Fit, with trenching LF 1,100.00     

Non-Pressurized Connection, w/ Fit EA 1.00            

Ductile Iron Fittings, WL LB 2,500.00     

6" Gate Valve EA 2.00            

8" Gate Valve EA 2.00            

Pipe Insulation LF 12.00          

Valve Box EA 4.00            

Fire Hydrant, 4' EA 2.00            

Mechanical Joint Restraining Gland, 4"-8" EA 12.00          

Joint Restraing Harness, 4"-8" EA 12.00          

2" Water Line LF 110.00        

Pipe Insulation LS 1.00            

Jack and Bore LF 65.00          

Traffic Control LS 1.00            

Rock Excavation (If needed) LS 1.00            

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

NMGRT 6.875%

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL

ENGINEER'S DISCLAIMER ON THE ENGINEERING ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST

Quantity Sheet

PROJECT: Madrid Waterline and Tank

BUDGET

This Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost is made on the basis of Engineer's experience and qualifications and represents the 

Engineer's best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional generally familiar with the industry. However, since the Engineer has 

no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or over the Contractor's methods of determining 

prices, or over competitive bidding on market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual 

construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable construction costs as prepared by Engineer. If Owner wishes greater assurance as to 

Page 1 of 1
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Trade Classification                                                                                      
 

Base Rate 
 

Fringe Rate 
 

Apprenticeship 

Cement Mason 25.08 7.41 0.60 

Drywall Finisher/Taper 30.51 9.63 0.60 

Painter-Industrial 24.00 6.70 0.60 

Paperhanger 24.00 6.70 0.60 

Plumber/Pipefitter 43.07 17.25 0.60 

Sheet Metal Worker 39.13 19.33 0.60 

Soft Floor Layer 21.00 9.20 0.60 

Asbestos Workers/Heat & Frost Insulators  

Asbestos workers/Heat & Frost 
Insulators 

36.36 12.46 0.60 

Asbestos workers/Heat & Frost 
Insulators: Los Alamos County 

38.79 12.46 0.60 

Boilermaker/Blacksmith  

Boilermaker/blacksmith 35.88 32.28 0.60 

Boilermaker/blacksmith:  San Juan 
County 

36.83 31.88 0.60 

Bricklayer/Block Layer/Stonemason  

Bricklayer/Block layer/Stonemason 27.03 10.99 0.60 

Bricklayer/Block layer/Stonemason:  
Curry, DeBaca, Quay and Roosevelt 
counties 

23.10 8.98 0.60 

Bricklayer/Block layer/Stonemason:  
Dona Ana, Otero, Eddie and Lea 
counties 

26.42 8.98 0.60 

Carpenter  

Carpenter/Lather 30.89 13.26 0.60 

Carpenter: Los Alamos County 37.39 14.18 0.60 

    

TYPE “H” –  

HEAVY ENGINEERING  
Effective January 1, 2025 
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TYPE “H” – HEAVY ENGINEERING  Effective January 1, 2024 

Trade Classification 

 
Base Rate 

 
Fringe Rate 

 
Apprenticeship 

 

Electricians-Outside Classifications:  Zone 1  

  Ground man  27.18 13.32 0.60 

  Equipment Operator  38.99 17.67 0.60 

  Lineman or technician  49.25 20.82 0.60 

  Cable Splicer  50.46 21.11 0.60 

Electricians-Outside Classification: Zone 2 

  Ground man 27.18 13.32 0.60 

  Equipment Operator 38.99 17.67 0.60 

  Lineman or technician 49.25 20.82 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 50.46 21.11 0.60 

Electricians-Outside Classifications: Los Alamos  

  Ground man 27.95 13.34 0.60 

  Equipment Operator 40.11 17.70 0.60 

  Lineman or technician 50.54 21.14 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 55.50 22.38 0.60 

Electricians-Inside Classifications: Zone 1  

  Wireman/low voltage technician 40.30 13.01 0.60 

  Cable Splicer  44.33 13.13 0.60 

Electricians-Inside Classification: Zone 2 

  Wireman/low voltage technician 43.93 13.11 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 47.96 13.25 0.60 

Electricians-Inside Classification: Zone 3 

  Wireman/low voltage technician 46.35 13.19 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 50.38 13.32 0.60 
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TYPE “H” – HEAVY ENGINEERING  Effective January 1, 2024 

Trade Classification 

 
Base Rate 

 
Fringe Rate 

 
Apprenticeship 

 

Electricians-Inside Classification: Zone 4 

  Wireman/low voltage technician 50.78 13.32 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 54.81 13.44 0.60 

Electricians-Inside Classification: Doña Ana, Hidalgo, Luna, and Otero County 

 Wireman/low voltage technician 32.82 9.85 0.60 

  Cable splicer 32.82 9.85 0.60 

Electricians-Inside Classification: Los Alamos  

  Wireman/low voltage technician 46.35 15.50 0.60 

  Cable Splicer 50.38 15.83 0.60 

Glazier 

  Glazier/Fabricator 22.25 7.40 0.60 

Ironworker 

  Ironworker Journeyman 28.96 19.11 0.60 

  Probationary Ironworker 23.17 19.11 0.60 

Roofer 

  Roofer Journeyman 29.71 9.36 0.60 

  Roofer Helper 17.83 9.36 0.60 

Operators 

  Group I  26.32 6.95 0.60 

  Group II 26.46 6.95 0.60 

  Group III 26.71 6.95 0.60 

  Group IV 27.27 6.95 0.60 

Trade Classification 

 
Base Rate 

 
Fringe Rate 

 
Apprenticeship 
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TYPE “H” – HEAVY ENGINEERING  Effective January 1, 2024 

  Group V 27.39 6.95 0.60 

  Group VI 27.65 6.95 0.60 

  Group VII 27.67 6.95 0.60 

  Group VIII 30.56 6.95 0.60 

  Group IX 36.83 6.95 0.60 

  Group X 41.06 6.95 0.60 

Laborers 

  Group I- Unskilled  19.74 7.51 0.60 

  Group II – Semi-skilled 21.19 7.51 0.60 

  Group III- Skilled 22.00 7.51 0.60 

  Group IV - Specialty 22.40 7.51 0.60 

Laborers-Underground 

  Group I  21.85 7.12 0.60 

  Group II 22.65 7.12 0.60 

  Group III 22.37 7.12 0.60 

Truck Drivers 

  Group I 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group II 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group III 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group IV 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group V 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group VI 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group VII 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group VIII 20.55 9.40 0.60 

  Group IX 26.55 9.40 0.60 

 
 

NOTE: All contractors are required to pay SUBSISTENCE, ZONE, AND INCENTIVE PAY 

according to the particular trade. More information available at 

https://www.dws.state.nm.us/public-works. 
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TYPE “H” – HEAVY ENGINEERING  Effective January 1, 2024 

For more information about the Subsistence, Zone, and Incentive Pay rates, or to file a wage 

claim, contact the New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions Labor Relations Division at 

(505) 841-4400 or visit us online at www.dws.state.nm.us. 
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"General Decision Number: NM20250034 01/03/2025

Superseded General Decision Number: NM20240034

State: New Mexico

Construction Type: Highway

County: Santa Fe County in New Mexico.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building 
structures in rest area projects & railroad construction;
bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for 
commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; 
and other major bridges).

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally
required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658.
Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered
contracts entered into by the federal government that are
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to
contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts,
including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

______________________________________________________________
|If the contract is entered    |. Executive Order 14026      |
|into on or after January 30,  |  generally applies to the   |
|2022, or the contract is      |  contract.                  |
|renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay    |
|option is exercised) on or    |  all covered workers at     |
|after January 30, 2022:       |  least $17.75 per hour (or  |
|                              |  the applicable wage rate   |
|                              |  listed on this wage        |
|                              |  determination, if it is    |
|                              |  higher) for all hours      |
|                              |  spent performing on the    |
|                              |  contract in 2025.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|
|If the contract was awarded on|. Executive Order 13658      |
|or between January 1, 2015 and|  generally applies to the   |
|January 29, 2022, and the     |  contract.                  |
|contract is not renewed or    |. The contractor must pay all|
|extended on or after January  |  covered workers at least   |
|30, 2022:                     |  $13.30 per hour (or the    |
|                              |  applicable wage rate listed|
|                              |  on this wage determination,|
|                              |  if it is higher) for all   |
|                              |  hours spent performing on  |
|                              |  that contract in 2025.     |

Docusign Envelope ID: C6EF7A46-0FA6-43F1-82AF-81416D2C5BD2



|______________________________|_____________________________|

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be
adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the
Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for
performance of work on the contract does not appear on this
wage determination, the contractor must still submit a
conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the Executive Orders is available at
http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0              01/03/2025

 ELEC0611-003 07/01/2014

                                  Rates          Fringes

ELECTRICIAN (Boom Operator)......$ 29.79            12.74
----------------------------------------------------------------
  SUNM2011-002 08/25/2011

                                  Rates          Fringes

CARPENTER (Includes Form Work)...$ 13.88 **          0.44
  
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER...$ 14.60 **          0.26
  
ELECTRICIAN (Includes Traffic   
Signalization and   
Installation)....................$ 25.06             8.56
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
Includes Highway Line/Parking   
Lot Line Striping and Line   
Striping Truck Driver............$ 14.75 **          0.35
  
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING..........$ 22.44             5.85
  
LABORER  
     Common or General...........$ 11.21 **          0.35
     Flagger/Cone Setter.........$ 13.55 **          0.35
     Mason Tender-
     Cement/Concrete.............$ 10.25 **          0.35
     Pipelayer...................$ 17.13 **          5.04
  
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR:  
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     Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe..$ 17.20 **          0.26
     Bobcat/Skid Loader..........$ 12.00 **          0.26
     Broom/Sweeper...............$ 16.67 **          1.57
     Grader/Blade................$ 17.64 **          1.51
     Loader (Front End)..........$ 16.43 **          0.26
     Mechanic....................$ 23.24             1.51
     Oiler.......................$ 22.08             8.72
     Piledriver..................$ 15.73 **          0.26
     Roller (Asphalt and Dirt)...$ 16.27 **          1.51
     Trencher....................$ 15.22 **          0.26
  
TRUCK DRIVER  
     Dump Truck..................$ 15.04 **          0.26
     Flatbed Truck...............$ 13.51 **          0.26
     Pickup Truck................$ 12.95 **          0.26
     Water Truck.................$ 12.96 **          0.26
----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher
minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 ($17.75) or 13658
($13.30).  Please see the Note at the top of the wage
determination for more information. Please also note that the
minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not
currently being enforced as to any contract or subcontract to
which the states of Texas, Louisiana, or Mississippi, including
their agencies, are a party.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.
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Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classifications
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
type(s) of construction and geographic area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order under rate identifiers indicating whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate), a survey
rate, a weighted union average rate, a state adopted rate, or a
supplemental classification rate.

Union Rate Identifiers

A four-letter identifier beginning with characters other than
""SU"", ""UAVG"", ?SA?, or ?SC? denotes that a union rate was
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2024. PLUM is an identifier of the union
whose collectively bargained rate prevailed in the survey for
this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers.
0198 indicates the local union number or district council
number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next
number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in
processing the wage determination. The date, 07/01/2024 in the
example, is the effective date of the most current negotiated
rate.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all changes
over time that are reported to WHD in the rates
in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing the
classification.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

The UAVG identifier indicates that no single rate prevailed for
those classifications, but that 100% of the data reported for
the classifications reflected union rates. EXAMPLE:
UAVG-OH-0010 01/01/2024. UAVG indicates that the rate is a
weighted union average rate. OH indicates the State of Ohio.
The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number
used in producing the wage determination. The date, 01/01/2024
in the example, indicates the date the wage determination was
updated to reflect the most current union average rate.
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A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January, to
reflect a weighted average of the current rates in the
collective bargaining agreements on which the rate is based.

Survey Rate Identifiers

The ""SU"" identifier indicates that either a single non-union
rate prevailed (as defined in 29 CFR 1.2) for this
classification in the survey or that the rate was derived by
computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates
reported in the survey for that classification. As a weighted
average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may
include both union and non-union rates. Example: SUFL2022-007
6/27/2024. SU indicates the rate is a single non-union
prevailing rate or a weighted average of survey data for that
classification. FL indicates the State of Florida. 2022 is the
year of the survey on which these classifications and rates are
based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal
number used in producing the wage determination. The date,
6/27/2024 in the example, indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

?SU? wage rates typically remain in effect until a new survey
is conducted. However, the Wage and Hour Division (WHD) has the
discretion to update such rates under 29 CFR 1.6(c)(1).

State Adopted Rate Identifiers

The ""SA"" identifier indicates that the classifications and
prevailing wage rates set by a state (or local) government were
adopted under 29 C.F.R 1.3(g)-(h).  Example: SAME2023-007
01/03/2024. SA reflects that the rates are state adopted. ME
refers to the State of Maine. 2023 is the year during which the
state completed the survey on which the listed classifications
and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an
internal number used in producing the wage determination.
The date, 01/03/2024 in the example, reflects the date on which
the classifications and rates under the ?SA? identifier took
effect under state law in the state from which the rates were
adopted.

-----------------------------------------------------------

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

           a) a survey underlying a wage determination
           b) an existing published wage determination
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c) an initial WHD letter setting forth a position on
a wage determination matter
d) an initial conformance (additional classification
and rate) determination

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be directed to the WHD Branch
of Wage Surveys. Requests can be submitted via email to
davisbaconinfo@dol.gov or by mail to:

            Branch of Wage Surveys
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

Regarding any other wage determination matter such as
conformance decisions, requests for initial decisions should be
directed to the WHD Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.
Requests can be submitted via email to BCWD-Office@dol.gov or
by mail to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2) If an initial decision has been issued, then any interested
party (those affected by the action) that disagrees with the
decision can request review and reconsideration from the Wage
and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7).
Requests for review and reconsideration can be submitted via
email to dba.reconsideration@dol.gov or by mail to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and any information (wage payment
data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that
the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
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            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210.

================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISION"

Docusign Envelope ID: C6EF7A46-0FA6-43F1-82AF-81416D2C5BD2



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: C6EF7A46-0FA6-43F1-82AF-81416D2C5BD2 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: 50-52100-24-06149 Madrid Water Tank Project B001-2A.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 43 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 2 James Ortega

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountain Time (US & Canada)

1100 S Saint Francis Dr

Santa Fe, NM  87502

james.ortega@gsd.nm.gov

IP Address: 164.64.62.10   

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             1/24/2025 4:07:46 PM

Holder: James Ortega

             james.ortega@gsd.nm.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: General Services Department Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Michael Saavedra

Michael.Saavedra@gsd.nm.gov

IT and Const. Bureau Chief

New Mexico General Services

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 174.205.164.18

Signed using mobile

Sent: 1/24/2025 4:10:15 PM

Viewed: 1/24/2025 4:27:39 PM 

Signed: 1/24/2025 4:28:32 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 6/4/2020 11:04:51 AM
      ID: 9cac1b3e-4279-4c8f-b2b4-c607ea9821d8

James Ortega

james.ortega@gsd.nm.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 164.64.62.10

Sent: 1/24/2025 4:28:35 PM

Viewed: 1/24/2025 4:29:10 PM 

Signed: 1/24/2025 4:29:16 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/24/2022 4:00:52 PM
      ID: b93eca54-15f4-4d91-9a9f-2dee3ce43c35

Dorothy Mendonca

dorothy.mendonca@gsd.nm.gov

SPD Division Director / State Purchasing Agent

General Services Department

Signing Group: 35000 - State Purchasing Agent

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 98.60.107.202

Signed using mobile

Sent: 1/24/2025 4:29:18 PM

Viewed: 1/24/2025 4:30:38 PM 

Signed: 1/24/2025 5:08:55 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 4/14/2023 7:24:59 AM
      ID: 51f6380f-50f7-4227-afb5-572b373dfb7c

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp



Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 1/24/2025 4:10:15 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 1/24/2025 4:30:38 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 1/24/2025 5:08:55 PM

Completed Security Checked 1/24/2025 5:08:55 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

A. ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD) 

From time to time, New Mexico General Services Department (GSD), on behalf of the State of 

New Mexico (SONM), may be required by law to provide you with certain written notices or 

disclosures. Stated below are the terms and conditions for GSD's providing you such notices and 

disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read this information carefully. If 

you are able to access this information electronically and agree to this Electronic Record and 

Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next 

to “I agree to use electronic records and signatures” before clicking “CONTINUE” within the 

DocuSign system. 

B. Obtaining paper copies 

At any time up to twenty (20) calendar days following your use of DocuSign to electronically 

sign a document, you may request a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by GSD. You will have the ability to download and print documents SONM 

sends you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if 

you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty (20) 

calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day 

period, if you want GSD to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office, 

you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage. You may request delivery of such paper 

copies from GSD by following the procedure stated in Section H, below. 

C. Withdrawing your consent 

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in 

paper format. The procedure concerning how you may inform GSD of your decision to receive 

future notices and disclosures in paper format as well as withdraw your consent to receive 

notices and disclosures electronically is stated in Section D, immediately below. 

D. Consequences of changing your mind 

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed with which GSD will be able to complete certain steps in specific transactions and deliver 

paper copies to you. GSD will need: (1) to send the required notices or disclosures to you in 

paper format; and (2) wait until GSD receives your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from SONM or to electronically sign 

documents generated and sent to you from SONM. 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 4/14/2020 1:18:28 PM
Parties agreed to: Michael Saavedra, James Ortega, Dorothy Mendonca



E. All notices and disclosures will be sent to 

you electronically 

Unless you inform GSD otherwise according to these procedures, GSD will electronically 

provide you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements and other documents that are required to be provided or made available to 

you during the course of your electronic signature relationship with SONM. To reduce the 

possibility of inadvertent non-receipt, GSD prefers to provide all required notices and disclosures 

by the same method and to the same email or physical address that you furnish to GSD. Thus, 

you may receive the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper form. If you do not agree 

with this procedure, please inform GSD according to the procedures stated in Section I, below. 

Please also refer to Section D, immediately above, which states the consequences resulting from 

your declination of electronic delivery of notices and disclosures. 

F. How to contact GSD: 

You may inform General Services Department (GSD) of any changes you select regarding State 

Purchasing Division’s (SPD) electronic communications with you, to request paper copies of 

certain information from SPD, and to withdraw your prior consent to receive notices and 

disclosures electronically by emailing your request(s) to SPD at: GSD.SPDinfo@state.nm.us 

G. To advise SPD of your new email address 

To inform SPD of a change in the email address to which SPD sends you notices and disclosures 

electronically, you must send an email to SPD at GSD.SPDinfo@state.nm.us and in the body of 

such request you must include your previous and new email addresses. 

H. To request paper copies from SPD  

To request delivery of paper copies of electronic notices and disclosures that DocuSign and/or 

SPD have previously provided to you, you must send an email to SPD at 

GSD.SPDinfo@state.nm.us and in the body of your email request state your email address, full 

name, mailing address, and telephone number. SPD will charge you a $1.00 per page copy fee 

plus postage. 

I. To withdraw your consent with SPD  

To inform SPD that you no longer wish to receive notices and disclosures in electronic format 

you may: 



(1) Decline to sign a document from within a signing session, and on the subsequent page, select 

the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may: 

(2) Send SPD an email to GSD.SPDinfo@state.nm.us and in the body of your request state your 

email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. 

J. Required hardware and software 

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current DocuSign system requirements may be found at: 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements 

K. Acknowledging your access and consent to 

receive and sign documents electronically 

To confirm that you are able to electronically access the information contained in this Electronic 

Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm that you have: (1) read this ERSD, and 

either: (2) you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for your future 

reference and access; or (3) you are able to email this ERSD to an email address where you will 

be able to print this ERSD on paper and/or save this ERSD for your future reference and access. 

Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures from DocuSign and/or SPD 

exclusively in electronic format, then select the check-box next to “I agree to use electronic 

records and signatures,” before you click “CONTINUE” within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to “I agree to use electronic records and signatures,” you 

confirm that: 

 You have read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure (ERSD); and 

 You can print this ERSD on paper, or you can save and/ or send this ERSD to a location 

where you can print this ERSD, for your future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify SPD as stated in this ERSD, you consent to exclusively receive 

through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and 

other documents that are required to be provided or made available to you by SPD during 

the course of your electronic signature relationship with SPD. 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements

	50-52100-24-06149 Madrid Water Tank Project B001-2.pdf
	50-52100-24-06149 Madrid Water Tank Project B001.pdf
	Madrid Tank Project Amend 1.pdf
	50-52100-24-06149 Madrid Water Tank Project A001 for review.pdf
	Madrid_WaterTank_Amd1_Attachments_012325.pdf


	B. Obtaining paper copies
	C. Withdrawing your consent
	D. Consequences of changing your mind
	E. All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically
	F. How to contact GSD:
	G. To advise SPD of your new email address
	H. To request paper copies from SPD
	I. To withdraw your consent with SPD
	J. Required hardware and software
	K. Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically

		2025-01-27T07:06:15-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




